
 
 

HOMES FOR GOOD BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
Wednesday, January 29th, 2025 

 
Table Of Contents 

(Click On Each Agenda Item to Navigate to That Section) 
 

AGENDA…………………………………………………………………………………………. Page 2  

  

COMMISSIONERS’ BUSINESS……………………………………………………………... Page 5 

  

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT…………………………………………………………… 

 

Page 8 

EMPLOYEE OF THE YEAR AWARD………………………………………………………… Page 9 

  

CONSENT AGENDA…………………………………………………………………………… 

12.18.2024 Board Minutes  

Page 10 

  

PRESENTATION.....……………..……………………………………………………………. Page 16 

Supplementary Funding Request to the National Science Foundation  

  

ORDER 25-29-01-01H………………………………………………………………………. 

In the Matter of Selecting the Lazy Days Park Model RV Contract  

Page 17 

  

ORDER 25-29-01-02H………………………………………………………………………. 

In the Matter of Updating the Administrative Plan and the Admissions & Continued 

Occupancy Plan – Distributions from Non-Revocable Trusts  

Page 37 

  

PRESENTATION............................................………………………………………….. 

Audit Corrective Action Plan Update  

Page 48 

  

 



AGENDA 

Homes for Good Housing Agency 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Location of the meeting: 

Homes for Good Administrative Building 

100 W 13th Avenue 

Eugene, OR 97401 

 

Zoom 

 

This meeting will be conducted in person with the option to join via public video call and conference line 

(see details below). 
 

 

Wednesday, January 29th, 2025, at 1:30pm   

The January 29th, 2025, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners meeting will be held at the Homes for 

Good Administrative Building. It will also be available via a public video call with dial-in capacity. The 

public has the option to participate in person or by joining via video call or conference line.   

 

Teams Meeting: 

 

Join Meeting: Link  

Meeting ID: 233 949 250 95 

Passcode: BHWRbS 

_______________________________________ 

 

Dial-In: +1 689-206-0388,,817935186# 

Phone Conference ID: 817 935 186# 

 

 

Guide to Using Teams: Link 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MmYyOWU3MmUtZGY0Ny00ZjlmLWFkMzctY2U5OTk5OTRiYWFi%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227c92bd05-c451-48f0-90fd-d8f838d8cee2%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22843b8a6e-63c8-43c6-ae6f-564fea258c89%22%7d
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/jlearymixon_homesforgood_org/EcptlDasMX5PrO7wrInReCkBpoaivJokVTDNL4RG0EnrGw?e=Ug6l9f


1. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Maximum time 30 minutes: Speakers will be taken in the order in which they sign up and will be limited 

to 3-minutes per public comments. If the number wishing to testify exceeds 10 speakers, then 

additional speakers may be allowed if the chair determines that time permits or may be taken at a later 

time. 

 

PLEASE NOTE: The Homes for Good Board of Commissioners is a policy advisory body to Homes for 

Good and is not designated to resolve issues in public meetings. The Board will not discuss or make 

decisions immediately on any issue presented.  

 

2. COMMISSIONERS' RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENTS AND/OR OTHER ISSUES 

AND REMONSTRANCE (2 min. limit per commissioner) 

 

3. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 

 

4. COMMISSIONERS’ BUSINESS 

A. Appointment of Board Chair & Vice Chair 

In accordance with the Homes for Good Bylaws Article II Section 2, “The 

Chairperson of the Agency shall be elected annually by majority vote of the Agency 

Board at its first meeting in January.” Additionally, in accordance with Article II 

Section 2 of the Homes for Good Bylaws, “The Vice Chairperson of the Agency shall 

be elected annually by the majority vote of the Agency Board at its first meeting in 

January.” 

 

B. Homes for Good Subcommittee/Ad Hoc Committee Member Assignments 

 

5. EMERGENCY BUSINESS 

 

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

None 

 

7. ADMINISTRATION 

A. Executive Director Report  

B. Employee of the Year Award 

 

8. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of 12/18/24 Board Meeting Minutes  

 

9. PRESENTATION 

Bioculture Health Indices Research for PSH Residents 

(University of Oregon Global Health Program) (Estimated 30 minutes)  

 

 





 

 

 

 

 

 

Homes for Good Board of 

Commissioner 2025 Committees  
 

 

 

 

 

 



STRATEGIC EQUITY PLAN AD HOC COMMITTEE 

Time Commitment 

- One (1) 60-90 minute virtual meeting in May 2025 

- 90 minutes to review materials prior to the meeting 

Total: 3 hours / year 

 

Purpose 

Annually review revised drafts of the Strategic Equity Plan (SEP) prepared and presented by the 

Equity Strategy Team (EST). The EST will need a 60–90 minute meeting with four (4) board 

members to review and provide feedback on the suggested changes and updates to the SEP for 

the following year. 

 

Need 

- Limit four (4) members 

 

BYLAWS REVIEW AD HOC COMMITTEE 

Time Commitment 

- Two (2) 90-minute meetings (at minimum) 

- 90 minutes to review materials prior to each meeting  

- 60 minutes for final draft review  

Total: 5.5 hours / year 

 

Purpose 

Evaluate and recommend updates and revisions to the Homes for Good Board of Commissioners 

Bylaws on an annual basis.  

 

Need 

- Limit two (2) members 

 

 

 

 











1. PUBLIC COMMENT  
None 

  
2. COMMISSIONERS' RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENTS AND/OR OTHER ISSUES 

AND REMONSTRANCE  
None 

 

3. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA  
- After the Executive Sessions ORDER 24-18-12-01H: In the Matter of the Executive Director 

Performance Evaluation was the next agenda item discussed. 

- Administration – Item C: Committee Member Assignments will be moved to the January 2025 board 
agenda  

 

4. COMMISSIONERS’ BUSINESS  
- Commissioner Buch joined at a delayed time due to a conflicting Lane County Board of County 

Commissioners meeting 

 

5. EMERGENCY BUSINESS  
None 

 

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

A. Homes for Good Board will hold an Executive Session pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(e), 
to conduct deliberations with persons designated by the Homes for Good Board of 
Commissioners to negotiate real estate property transactions.   

 

B. Homes for Good Board will hold an Executive Session pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(i) 
to review and evaluate the job performance of a chief executive officer, other officers, 
and employees, and staff, if the person whose performance is being reviewed and 
evaluated does not request an open hearing.   

 

7. ADMINISTRATION  

A. Executive Director Report 

Jacob Fox provided updates for the ongoing Real Estate Development construction 
projects of Lazy Days and Ollie Court. Lazy Days is facing a funding deficit as a result 
of additional costs to hook up utilities and finalize the homes. Homes for Good is 
working with Oregon Housing & Community Services (OHCS) to secure additional 
funding. Ollie Court is on schedule and on budget.  

Homes for Good staff and board members attended the Eugene Area Chamber of 
Commerce Economic Summit on November 21st.  Gregg Coburn, co-author of 
“Homelessness is a Housing Problem” was in attendance and speaker at the event.  

Homes for Good has a new Finance Director, Dan Temmesfeld. Unaudited financials 
for FY24 have been submitted to HUD for review. The Finance team is continuing to 



complete bank account reconciliations. All October 2024 account statements have 
been reviewed and over 50% reconciled.  

Supportive Housing Director, Wakan Alferes applied and was awarded $500,000.00 
from the Lane Community Health Council for Bridges on Broadway (BoB) operational 
funding.  

Lazy Days Celebration will be on January 30th or 31st. Currently Homes for Good is 
correspondence with a few elected state officials to determine which date will work 
best for everyone. There will be a Lane Transit District (LTD) bus to talk folks out to 
the event.  

B. Homes for Good in the News 

[see document titled: News Reports] 

 

8. CONSENT AGENDA  
A. Approval of 10/30/2024 Board Meeting Minutes  

B. ORDER 24-18-12-03H: In the Matter of Approving the Homes for Good Commissioner Kirk 

Strohman Four-Year Term Recommendation 

 

Vote Tabulations 

Motion: Chloe Chapman 

Second: Destinee Thompson 

Discussion: Chloe Chapman expressed appreciation for Kirk’s continued work on the Board, 

his participation on the board finance committee and providing his expertise.   

 

Ayes: Michelle Thurston, Heather Buch, Justin Sandoval, Kirk Strohman, Chloe Chapman, 

Larissa Ennis, Destinee Thompson 

Abstain: None 

Excused: Pat Farr, Joel Iboa 

The 12/18/2024 Consent Agenda was approved [7/0/2] 

 

________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 

 

 



________________________________________

________________________________________ 

9. ORDER 24-18-12-01H: In the Matter of the Executive Director Performance 

Evaluation 
Human Resources Director, Bailey McEuen Presenting  
 

Overview 

The current Executive Director evaluation process started in 2021. A survey this year was sent out 

internally and to external partners. Additionally, the Executive Director completes a self-assessment.  

 

[see document titled: Board Memo – In the Matter of Documenting the Executive Director’s Annual 

Performance Evaluation & Instructing Human Resources Regarding Revision of the Employment 

Agreement] 

 

Discussion Themes 

▪ Chloe Chapman and Larissa Ennis expressed appreciation for Jacob’s work and how he shows up 

as not only an Agency leader, but  community leader.  

 

Vote Tabulations 

Motion: Kirk Strohman  

Second: Chloe Chapman 

Discussion: Jacob Fox expressed gratitude for the Homes for Good Board of Commissioners 

and the time they dedicate to the Agency.   

 

Ayes: Michelle Thurston, Justin Sandoval, Kirk Strohman, Chloe Chapman, Larissa Ennis, 

Destinee Thompson 

Abstain: None 

Excused: Heather Buch, Pat Farr, Joel Iboa 

ORDER 24-18-12-01H was approved [6/0/3] 

 

________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 



________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 

10. PRESENTATION: Hate & Bias 6 Month Report 
Human Resources Director, Bailey McEuen Presenting  
 

Overview 

The Hate & Bias Response Procedure was created to address and resolve complaints related to 

discrimination, harassment and other forms of hate and bias experienced in Homes for Good’s 

communities and workplace. 

  

Reports are reviewed as they come in and the procedures outline appropriate follow-up and action to 

take. An overview of incidents is provided to the Board on a six (6) month basis.  

 

[see document titled: Hate & Bias Incidents 2024 Board Report] 

 

Discussion Themes 

None 

 

No action needed. 

________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



________________________________________

________________________________________ 

11. ORDER 24-18-12-02H: In the Matter of a Procurement Process for the 

Replacement of the Heeran Center Heating System 
Asset Manager, Victoria Smithweiland Presenting 

 

Overview 

The Heeran Center is a combined residential and commercial building that provides 24/7 to residents 

with severe and persistent mental illness. The commercial space is occupied by Lane County.  

 

Building heating and cooling is provided by a heat pump system that is dependent on two (2) water 

source boilers. The system has failed. An urgent replacement is needed, and this will entail a 

procurement process to be initiated for the work and supplies.  

 

There will be  further discussion to determine if Homes for Good will continue to own this property in 

the future.  

 

Discussion Themes 

None 

 

Vote Tabulations 

Motion: Kirk Strohman  

Second: Destinee Thompson 

Discussion: None  

 

Ayes: Heather Buch, Michelle Thurston, Justin Sandoval, Kirk Strohman, Chloe Chapman, 

Larissa Ennis, Destinee Thompson 

Abstain: None 

Absent: Pat Farr, Joel Iboa 

ORDER 24-18-12-02H was approved [7/0/2] 

 

________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 

 
12. OTHER BUSINESS 

None 

 
  

Meeting adjourned at 3:30 p.m. 
Minutes Taken By: Jasmine Leary Mixon 







 
HOMES FOR GOOD MEMORANDUM REFERENCE DOCUMENT 

 

TO:  Homes for Good Board of Commissioners  

FROM: Audrey Banks, Real Estate Development Director  

TITLE: In the Matter of Authorizing the Executive Director to approve Contract 25-C-

0014 for the Manufacturing, Delivery, and Installation of Park Model RV’s at Lazy 

Days Mobile Home Park 

DATE:  January 29th, 2025    

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

MOTION:   

It is moved that the Homes for Good Board of Commissioners authorize the Executive Director or 

Authorized Designee to approve Contract 25-C-0014 with Palm Harbor for the Manufacturing, 

Delivery, and Installation of Modular Homes at Lazy Days Mobile Home Park with a purchase price 

up to $62,001 per unit. 

DISCUSSION: 

A. Issue 

Homes for Good has entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with Oregon 

Housing and Community Services (OHCS) to rebuild the Lazy Days Mobile Home and RV 

Park located approximately 2 miles east of Blue River Oregon. As part of this rebuilding 

effort Homes for Good is securing funds from OCHS and HUD to pay for 10 Park Model RV’s 

to complete phase 2 of the project. This order will authorize the Executive Director or 

Authorized Designee to execute Contract 25-C-0014 with Palm Harbor for the 

Manufacturing, Delivery, and Installation of these Park Model RV’s at Lazy Days Mobile 

Home Park.  

 

B. Background 

Lazy Days Mobile Home and RV Park is an 8-acre site located on the north side of McKenzie 

River Hwy at 52511 McKenzie River Hwy about 2 miles east of the unincorporated town of 

Blue River. The park was completely burned in the Holiday Farm fire that started just to the 

east of the park in September of 2020. Prior to being destroyed the park provided 21 

Manufactured Home spaces and 15 RV spaces. At the time of the fire there were 20 

occupied manufactured homes including the managers home and 5 occupied RV spaces that 

were being rented on a long-term basis. 

 



 
Homes for Good is nearing completion of phase one which includes the manufacturing and 

installation of 20 modular homes placed on permanent foundations, extensive site work to 

provide a community well, septic system, community building and a playground.  The 

community building includes a community area, offices, and a laundry facility. The site work 

has been completed to prepare for the delivery of 10 Park Model RVs to complete phase 2 

of the project and continue to provide replacement homes for people displaced by the fire. 

Homes for Good staff is preparing for occupancy of Phase 1.   

 

C. Analysis 

In September 2024, Homes for Good put out a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the 

Manufacturing, Delivery, and Installation of Park Model RV’s at Lazy Days Mobile Home Park. 

The RFP specified the overall dimension maximum of the units, fire hardening requirements 

and other specifications but left the overall design to each respondent. A committee of Homes 

for Good staff and two consultants reviewed and scored all proposals. Three (3) proposals 

were received.  Of the 3 applicants, Palm Harbor was selected from this pool based on such 

factors as cost, quality and design, schedule of delivery, completeness of RFP, 

experience/qualifications, and references. Palm Harbor is located in Albany, Oregon, and 

builds manufactured homes as well as Park Model RV’s. 

Factors that contributed to Palm Harbor’s proposal to being selected included their price, 

experience with Park Model RV’s, the quality of construction and thorough proposal along with 

references. The scoring breakout is included as Attachment A. 

Homes for Good is in final negotiations to match the roofs, decks and exterior paint of the 

units with the modular homes.  The unit prices with Palm Harbor are currently quoted at 

$62,001 each.  For all 10, the total is $620,010.  In order to allow for a small contingency as 

numbers are finalized with the roofs, decks and paint, the contract with Palm Harbor should 

not exceed $650,000.   
 

The Park Model RV units only include baseboard heat.  They are built plumbed for ductless 

heat pumps, which are not provided by Palm Harbor. Homes for Good is working with the 

General Contractor for the site, Meili construction to budget and plan within the existing 

sitework contract for the electrical and plumbing hookups after delivery, along with the 

installation of ductless heat pumps, which will also provide air conditioning.  This will be 

comparable to the heat/ac provided in the modular homes. 

 

D. Furtherance of the Strategic Equity Plan 

The rebuild of Lazy helps implement the Homes for Good strategic equity plan in the 

following ways: 



 
• Providing additional opportunities for contracting with MWESB contractors and 

Section 3 (Low-income) workers. 

• Provide self-sufficiency and homeownership opportunities for low-income Lane 

County residents that lost homes. 

Approval of the attached order will allow Homes for Good to execute necessary documents 

and achieve these outcomes.  

 

E. Alternatives & Other Options 

The alternative is to not approve the contract and ask staff to engage with a different firm for 

the Manufacturing, Delivery, and Installation of the Park Model RV’s for Lazy Days. The RFP 

process would need to be repeated in order to find a company that could provide the same 

quality product in a similar price point.   

 

F. Timing & Implementation 

Upon approval of the Order, Homes for Good will confirm funding availability with Oregon 

Housing and Community Services and finalize and execute approve Contract 25-C-0014 with 

Palm Harbor for the Manufacturing, Delivery, and Installation of Park Model RVs at Lazy Days 

Mobile Home Park in the subsequent weeks. With orders being placed at the beginning of 

February, the estimated timeline for delivery of the units is April/May 2025. 

 

G. Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Board of Commissioners approve the attached board order to 

allow Homes for Good Housing Agency to execute contracts for the Manufacturing, Delivery, 

and Installation of Park Model RV’s at Lazy Days Mobile Home Park. 

 

H. Follow Up 

Homes for Good does not expect to need further board approval to complete the construction 

and lease-up of the Lazy Days Mobile Home Park Rebuild and will bring the board regular 

updates on progress. 

 

I. Attachments 

Attachment A: Park Model RV RFP Scoring Sheet  

Attachment B: Quotation Summary 

  



Attachment A 

LAZY DAYS PARK MODEL RV – Overall Scores – RFP Scoring Sheet 

 

   

 

Average Scores 

Firm 

Cost, Quality, 

and Design 
(50 pts) 

Experience/ 

Qualifications 
(25 pts) 

Schedule of 
Delivery of 

Units 
(10 pts) 

References 

(10 pts) 

Completeness 

of RFP 
(5 pts) 

Firm Total 

(100 pts) 

Idea 

Box 
32.5 23.5 8 9.5 4.75 80.75 

Future 

Homes 
27.25 15.25 5.25 8.25 2 57 

Palm 
Harbor 

45.25 22.75 9.75 9.25 5 92 

 

Audrey Banks [Homes for Good, Real Estate Division Director] 

Firm 
Cost, Quality, 
and Design 

(50 pts) 

Experience/ 
Qualifications 

(25 pts) 

Schedule of 

Delivery of 

Units 
(10 pts) 

References 

(10 pts) 

Completeness 
of RFP 

(5 pts) 

Firm Total 

(100 pts) 

Idea 
Box 

20 25 7 10 5 77 

Future 

Homes 
42 20 0 8 3 73 

Palm 
Harbor 

46 23 10 8 5 92 

 

 

Jeffrey Champ [Homes for Good, Maintenance Supervisor FFS] 

Firm 
Cost, Quality, 
and Design 

(50 pts) 

Experience/ 
Qualifications 

(25 pts) 

Schedule of 
Delivery of 

Units 
(10 pts) 

References 

(10 pts) 

Completeness 
of RFP 

(5 pts) 

Firm Total 

(100 pts) 

Idea 

Box 
40 20 9 8 4 81 

Future 

Homes 
30 12 8 8 4 62 

Palm 
Harbor 

42 24 9 9 5 89 

 

 

 

 

 

























AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UFLOOR PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%U391 sq.ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Note:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1) Unit requires min. R-30 floor, R-21 walls and R-33 Roof

AutoCAD SHX Text
in order to be in compliance with HUD standards.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S & R

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVING/DINING ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
48" SHOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
B2854

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDROOM 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
38rx82

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2)36 1/2X17 above

AutoCAD SHX Text
0,0

AutoCAD SHX Text
81.73 SQ.FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
185.89 SQ.FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%Uoption closet module

AutoCAD SHX Text
S & R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3686

AutoCAD SHX Text
(W.P. EXTERIOR MNT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.P.BOX 24" UP BOTTOM OF FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
STACK W/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UWith Option stack W/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
48" SHOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
B2454

AutoCAD SHX Text
EGRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
72x80 SGD

AutoCAD SHX Text
14 1/2x40

AutoCAD SHX Text
14 1/2x40

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
36 1/2X80

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCI-30-SOMS-K

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPACESAVER W/H

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODEL#

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/H

AutoCAD SHX Text
30 1/2X40

AutoCAD SHX Text
B2855

AutoCAD SHX Text
B3655

AutoCAD SHX Text
B1455

AutoCAD SHX Text
B1455

AutoCAD SHX Text
W14

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
W2842

AutoCAD SHX Text
W3022

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPTION MICRO

AutoCAD SHX Text
W14

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
SG3286

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" FILLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/OPT D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UOption Kitchen

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wall Heater Location

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wall Heater Location

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wall Heater Location

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2)36 1/2X80 with

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UShed Roof Design

Candice Yurcisin
Rectangle

Candice Yurcisin
Rectangle

Candice Yurcisin
Rectangle

Candice Yurcisin
Callout
EXT DHP CONDENSER

Candice Yurcisin
Callout
DHP HEAD UNIT





Candice Yurcisin
Typewritten Text
OPTIONS ON ORDER SUPERCED THESE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS

Candice Yurcisin
Callout
SUB WINDOW

Candice Yurcisin
Callout
SUB ELEC RANGE

Candice Yurcisin
Callout
OPT 100 AMP



 
 
 

IN THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOMES FOR GOOD HOUSING AGENCY, OF LANE COUNTY OREGON 

 

 

ORDER 25-29-01-01H In the Matter of Authorizing the Executive 

Director to approve Contract 25-C-0014 for 

the Manufacturing, Delivery, and Installation 

of Modular Homes at Lazy Days Mobile Home 

Park. 

 WHEREAS, Housing and Community Services Agency of Lane County doing business as 

Homes for Good Housing Agency (the “Authority”) is a public body corporate and politic, 

exercising public and essential governmental functions, and having all the powers necessary or 

convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes of the ORS 456.055 to 456.235 (the “Housing 

Authorities Law”); and 

WHEREAS, Homes for Good Housing Agency is assisting in recovery efforts for the 

McKenzie River community that was impacted by the 2020 Holiday Farm Fire; 

WHEREAS, Homes for Good Housing Agency has purchased the Lazy Days Mobile Home 

Park that was destroyed in the Holiday Farm Fire; 

WHEREAS, Homes for Good Housing Agency is working to rebuild the Park and provide 

affordable homeownership and rental opportunities;  

WHEREAS, Homes for Good Housing Agency conducted a Request For Proposals process 

to select a firm to Manufacture, Delivery, and install Park Model RV units at Lazy Days Mobile 

Home Park;  

WHEREAS, Homes for Good Housing Agency determined that the Palm Harbor proposal 

for Manufacturing, Delivery, and installation of Park Model RV units scored the highest during 

the Request for Proposal process. 

NOW IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT:   

 The Executive Director or Designee is authorized to enter into a Contract not to exceed  

$650,000 for the manufacturing, delivery, and installation of Park Model RV’s at Lazy Days Mobile 

Home Park.  

 

DATED this                day of                                             , 2025 

 

__________________________________________________   

Chair, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners   

__________________________________________________   

Secretary, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners   





 
 

HOMES FOR GOOD MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: Homes for Good Board of Commissioners 

 

FROM: Beth Ochs, Rent Assistance Division Director  

 

TITLE: In the Matter of updating the FY25 Administrative Plan and the Admissions 
and Continued Occupancy (ACOP) – Distribution from Trusts 

DATE:     January 29, 2025     

 
MOTION:   

Seeking Board Approval to implement HOTMA language that has been approved by HUD regarding 
distribution of funds from irrevocable trusts or revocable trusts outside the control of the family.   
 
DISCUSSION: 

A. Issue 
HOTMA regulations change how a Public Housing Agency (PHA) views money that is removed from 
a trust. Since publishing its HOTMA regulations, two tenants have put forth requests to Homes for 
Good to follow the HOTMA regulations as they pertain to the trusts.   

 
B. Background 

Pre HOTMA regulations required the (PHA) to count distributions from the trust as income. HOTMA 
regulations require a PHA to count only the interest earned as income (unless the distribution of 
interest is to pay for medical expenses of a minor).  
 
Pre HOTMA regulation:  
In cases where a trust is not revocable by, or under the control of, any member of a family, the value 
of the trust fund is not considered an asset. However, any income distributed to the family from such 
a trust is counted as a periodic payment or a lump-sum receipt, as appropriate [24 CFR5.603(b)]. 
 
HOTMA regulation: 
The value of the trust is not included in net family assets, so long as the fund continues to be held 
in a trust that is not revocable by, or under the control of, any member of the family or household. 
All distributions from the trust’s principal are excluded from income. Distributions of income earned 
by the trust (i.e., interest, dividends, realized gains, or other earnings on the trust’s principal), are 
included as income unless the distribution is used to pay for the health and medical expenses for a 
minor. [24 CFR5.603(b)]. 
 
Unless otherwise stated HUD defines income as, all amounts, monetary or not, which go to, or on 
behalf of, the family head or spouse (even if temporarily absent) or to any other family member; or 
are anticipated to be received from a source outside the family during the 12-month period following 
admission or annual reexamination effective date; and annual income also means amounts derived 
(during the 12-month period) from assets to which any member of the family has access. 



 

 
C. Analysis 

Two families being served by Homes for Good (1 applicant and 1 tenant) asserted via the Hearing 
process and the Reasonable Accommodation process that HOTMA should be followed as it pertains 
to revocable trusts outside the control of the family. For these two families, the pre HOTMA 
regulations would result in one family being over income to qualify for subsidy and the other 
contesting the out of pocket rent cost would encompass principal distributions from the trust which 
HOTMA does not allow. 
 
To address their concerns, a waiver to HUD to implement the HOTMA regulations prior to HUD’s 
approval to do so was requested. 
 
Amid gaining approval to the waiver HUD published PIH Notice 2024-38 on December 17, 2024. 
This notice provides details on what aspects of HOTMA PHAs need to implement by July 1, 2025. 
Included in this notice is the HOTMA regulation for trusts. 
 
The HUD field office then advised Homes for Good to withdraw its waiver request and to implement 
the trust regulations via implementation of the PIH notice.   

 
D. Furtherance of the Strategic Equity Plan 

This implementation of HOTMA regulations for trust disbursements reflects our commitment 
to the pillar of “Listen to our Communities”. By first seeking the waiver and then pivoting to 
the PIH notice, we have actively responded to the needs and concerns of those we serve. 

 
E. Alternatives & Other Options 

The implementation may be delayed until July 2025. If this option is selected, one family 
would lose their assistance from Homes for Good, while the other would need to use trust 
principal to cover rent expenses. 

 
F. Timing & Implementation 

Upon approval of the board order we will update both the Administrative and ACOP plans.  
 
G. Recommendation 

Homes for Good recommends the board approve this board order.   

 
H. Follow Up 

Other aspects of HOTMA from the PIH Notice will be addressed in future board orders prior to July 
2025.  
 

I. Attachments 
PIH Notice 2024-38 

 
 



 

          U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
WASHINGTON, DC  20410-5000 

 
 

OFFICE OF PUBLIC AND INDIAN HOUSING 

 

 

 

SPECIAL ATTENTION OF:  NOTICE PIH 2024-38 

Office Directors of Public Housing;  Issued:  December 17, 2024 

Regional Directors; Public Housing     

Agencies Expires:  This notice remains in effect until 

amended, superseded or rescinded.  

  

Cross References: Notice PIH 2023-27, Notice H 

2024-09  

 

 

Subject:   Housing Opportunity Through Modernization Act (HOTMA) Sections 102 and 

104: Updated Guidance to Public Housing Agencies (PHAs) on Compliance 

 

I. Purpose 

The purpose of this Notice is to identify which income and assets provisions from Sections 

102 and 104 of the Housing Opportunity Through Modernization Act of 2016 (HOTMA) 

that Public Housing Agencies (PHAs) must comply with no later than July 1, 2025.1   

Section 6.1 of Notice PIH 2023-27 previously established a compliance deadline of January 

1, 2025, by which PHAs had to fully comply with the HOTMA final rule.2 This Notice 

supersedes, in part, Section 6.1 of Notice PIH 2023-27. This Notice indicates that for the 

specific HOTMA provisions identified below, the new deadline for PHA compliance is 

July 1, 2025.  For all other provisions that are not identified in this Notice, HUD will not 

enforce PHA compliance by January 1, 2025.  

II. Background 

HOTMA was signed into law on July 29, 2016 (Pub. L. 114-201). The final rule 

implementing Sections 102 and 104 of HOTMA (88 FR 9600) became effective January 1, 

2024. HUD initially provided, in the HOTMA Section 102 and 104 Implementation 

 
1 References to form HUD–50058 in this notice take on the meaning of form HUD–50058 MTW for MTW PHAs and form HUD–50058 MTW 

Expansion for MTW Expansion PHAs. 
2 Housing Opportunity Through Modernization Act of 2016; Implementation of Sections 102, 103, and 104. 88 Fed. Reg., 9,600. February 14, 

2023. 

   

  

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2023/02/14/2023-01617/housing-opportunity-through-modernization-act-of-2016-implementation-of-sections-102-103-and-104


https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/OCHCO/documents/2023-27pihn.pdf
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/OCHCO/documents/2023-27pihn.pdf
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/PIH/documents/9.18.24%20HOTMA%20102%26104%20Income%20and%20Assets%20Rule%20Compliance.pdf
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/PIH/documents/HOTMA_HIP_Update_2.23.2024.pdf






https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2024/05/07/2024-08601/housing-opportunity-through-modernization-act-of-2016-housing-choice-voucher-hcv-and-project-based
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2024/05/07/2024-08601/housing-opportunity-through-modernization-act-of-2016-housing-choice-voucher-hcv-and-project-based


mailto:HOTMAQuestions@hud.gov.


 
 
 

IN THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOMES FOR GOOD HOUSING AGENCY, OF LANE COUNTY OREGON 

 

 

ORDER 25-29-01-02H In the Matter of Updating the Housing Choice 

Voucher Administrative Plan and Admissions 

& Continued Occupancy (ACOP), Distributions 

from Trusts  

 

WHEREAS, Homes for Good is required by HUD under the Housing Opportunity Through 
Modernization Act (HOMTA) to implement income exclusions noted in 24 CFR 5,609(b) 
 
WHEREAS, PIH Notice 2024-38 identifies which aspects of HOTMA PHAs can implement as of 
December 17, 2024.  
 
WHEREAS, Homes for Good is implementing the required HOTMA changes for certain 
distributions of irrevocable trusts or revocable trusts outside the control of the family or 
household (24 CFR 5.609(b)(2)).    
 
NOW IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT:  

The Housing Choice Voucher Administrative Plan for Fiscal Year 2025 and the Admissions 

and Continued Occupancy Plan for Fiscal Year 2025 shall be revised as follows:  

The Pre and Post HOTMA Regulatory Citation Matrix will be updated by completing the "Date 
Implemented" field for "Distributions from Trusts" as of the board order approval date. This 
update will trigger the following regulatory implementation: 
 

 
Trusts [24 CFR 5.609(b)(2) and 5.603(b)(4)] 

A trust is a legal arrangement generally regulated by state law in which one party (the creator 

or grantor) transfers property to a second party (the trustee) who holds the property for the 

benefit of one or more third parties (the beneficiaries). 

The following types of trust distributions are excluded from annual income: 

• Distributions of the principal or corpus of the trust; and 

• Distributions of income from the trust when the distributions are used to pay the costs 

of health and medical care expenses for a minor. 

The basis for determining how to treat trusts relies on information about who has access to 

either the principal in the account or the income from the account. There are two types of 

trusts, revocable and irrevocable. 

When the creator sets up an irrevocable trust, the creator has no access to the funds in the 

account. Irrevocable trusts not under the control of any member of the family or household are 

not assets. Typically, special needs trusts are considered irrevocable. The value of the trust is 



not included in net family assets, so long as the fund continues to be held in a trust that is not 

revocable by, or under the control of, any member of the family or household [24 CFR 

5.603(b)(4)]. Where an irrevocable trust is excluded from net family assets, the PHA must not 

consider actual income earned by the trust (e.g., interest earned, rental income if property is 

held in the trust) for so long as the income from the trust is not distributed. If the value of the 

trust is not considered part of the family’s net assets, then distributions from the trust are 

treated as follows: 

• All distributions from the trust’s principal are excluded from income. 

• Distributions of income earned by the trust (i.e., interest, dividends, realized gains, or other 

earnings on the trust’s principal), are included as income unless the distribution is used to 

pay for the health and medical expenses for a minor. 

A revocable trust is a trust that the creator of the trust may amend or end (revoke). When 

there is a revocable trust, the creator has access to the funds in the trust account. 

The value of revocable trusts that are not under the control of the family are excluded from net 

family assets. This happens when a member of the assisted family is the beneficiary of a 

revocable trust, but the grantor is not a member of the assisted family. In this case the 

beneficiary does not “own” the revocable trust, and the value of the trust is excluded from net 

family assets. For the revocable trust to be considered excluded from net family assets, no 

family or household member may be the account’s trustee. If this is the case, then distributions 

from the trust are treated as follows: 

• All distributions from the trust’s principal are excluded from income. 

• Distributions of income earned by the trust (i.e., interest, dividends, realized gains, or other 

earnings on the trust’s principal), are included as income unless the distribution is used to 

pay for the health and medical expenses for a minor. 
 

Revocable trusts under the control of the family or household (e.g., the grantor is a member of 

the assisted family or household) are considered assets and must be included in net family 

assets. 

If the value of the trust is considered part of the family’s net assets, then distributions from the 

trust are not considered income to the family. The PHA must count all actual returns (e.g., 

interest earned) from the trust as income or, if the trust has no actual returns (e.g., if the trust is 

comprised of farmland that is not in use) and the total value of the combined net family assets 

exceeds $50,000 (as that amount is updated for inflation), as imputed returns, as applicable. 

 

 
DATED this                day of                                             , 2025 

 

__________________________________________________   

Chair, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners   

 

__________________________________________________   

Secretary, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners   





 

 

 

 

July 24, 2024 

 
Oregon Secretary of State 
Audits Division 
255 Capitol St. NE, Ste 500 

Salem OR 97310 

Plan of Action for Sample Municipality 
 

Homes for Good Housing Agency respectfully submits the following corrective action plan in response 
to the deficiency/finding reported in our audit for fiscal year ending September 30, 2023. The audit 
was completed by the independent auditing firm Berman Hopkins CPAs and Associates, LLP and 
reported the deficiencies listed below. The plan of action was adopted by the governing body at their 
meeting on July 24, 2024, as indicated by the signature below. 

Findings are listed below, including the adopted plan of action and timeframe for each. 

1. Finding #1 (2023-01) 
a. Type of Finding: Financial Reporting, Significant Deficiency in Internal Control 
During our audit of the Agency’s financial statements, adjustments were needed to 
properly report the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. Certain accounts had not been properly reconciled and corrective entries were 
not readily available. Significant adjustments were necessary for several audit areas. The 
general ledger and the unaudited data submitted to REAC required numerous and material 
audit adjustments that delayed the audit, and therefore REAC could not provide proper 
timely financial oversight. The Agency should continue to develop and implement internal 
controls over both internal and external reporting, and the year-end close process to 
ensure reporting remains accurate and timely, with any unexpected financial data being 
investigated and corrected before it is reported. The Agency should consider additional 
staff training on development activities and its financial software. 
b. Plan of Action and Timeframe for Implementation 

 

Action Timeframe Responsible Person Notes 
Enter GL Opening Balances into new 
software, Yardi 

July 31, 2024 Brandy, Stacy and CLA Staff 
Eileen left in August 

9/26 All opening balances have been 
completed. CAP Adjustments in process 
11/6 – Complete 

Utilize Clifton Larson Allen, CPA, 
and any available HUD training 
regarding FDS classifications & GL 
Account Crosswalk 

July 31, 2024 Cori and Brandy 
Assist from CLA as needed 

9/26 HAB to Yardi Crosswalk is complete 
but needs to be communicated to 
organization.  
11/6 - Complete 



 

 

Complete Year-to-Date period close, 
October 2023 thru June 2024 

August 15, 
2024 

Brandy, Stacy and CLA 
Staff 
Eileen left in August 

9/26 Please note that reconciliations 
from October 2023 through July 2024 are 
being completed together.  
12/16 - Complete 

Complete Month-end close for July 
2024 

August 30, 
2024 

Brandy, Stacy and CLA 
Staff 
Eileen left in August 

9/26 Please note that reconciliations 
from October 2023 through July 2024 are 
being completed together. 
12/16 - Complete 

Complete Month-end close for August 
2024 and thereafter by last business 
day of the following month 

September 
30, 2024 

Brandy, Stacy and CLA 
Staff 
Eileen left in August 

9/26 Monthly reconciliation checklist has 
been drafted and all months will be 
reconciled monthly as of FY2025. 
12/16 - Complete 

Complete FY24 Year-end Close November 
15, 2024 

Finance Department as a 
whole 

9/26 Internal due date is 11/8/2024 
12/16 -  

Utilize Clifton Larson Allen, CPA to 
ensure compliance with relevant and 
new FASB and GASB rules 

November 
15, 2024 

CLA Staff 9/26 In process in terms of review.  
11/6 - Complete 

 
 

2. Finding #2 (2023-02) 
a. Type of Finding: Eligibility, Moving to Work Demonstration Program AL No.14.881, 

Other matter required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a). Out of an 
approximate population of approximately3,900 tenants, 86 tenant files were tested and 
the following deficiencies were noted: 

• One file did not complete the income calculation correctly 

• One file did not have a 214 declaration form for all members of the 
household 

• Once file did not have the required form of identification 
documented 

• Two files did not have the unit inspection for the prior 3 years 

• Two files did not have the required support to prove dependency 
The Agency is not in compliance with HUD requirements regarding eligibility which 
could result in the incorrect amount of rental assistance provided. The Agency should 
reevaluate their established procedures and controls in place to ensure full compliance 
in regards to eligibility. The Agency needs to correct the deficiencies noted in the tested 
files and consider the impact to the rest of the population to tenant files that were not 
selected as part of the auditor’s sample. 

 

Action Time Frame Responsible 
Person 

Notes 

7 files flagged for audit 
corrected 

August 31, 2024 Program Manager, 
Christi Champ 

9/26 Has been corrected as of 
8/20/24  
Complete 

Overdue Inspections completed September 30, 2024 Program Manager, 
Nat Dybens 

Should meet deadline (Per Beth) 
11/6 - Complete 

Quality Control review of files 
resumes. Paused since software 
conversion 

July 31, 2024 Program Manager, 
Christi Champ 

Have been started again per Beth 
11/6 - Complete 



 

Disposal of documentation 
approved by supervisory staff 

August 1, 2024 Program Manager, 
Nat Dybens 

New Procedure to have supervisory 
sign and approve per Beth 
11/6 - Complete 

Checklists for eligibility 
functions enhanced with focus 
on the addition of family 
members to 
established families 

July 31, 2024 Division Director, 
Beth Ochs 

2 New Checklists established – one 
to address the add a family issue 
and the other is intake eligibility 
essential 
11/6 - Complete 

Additional 50 files randomly 
selected for audit compliance 

July 31, 2024 Program Manager, 
Christi Champ 

Those were pulled and 10 had 
errors. 3 missing form HUD form 
214, 5 were missing DOB, 1 had 
calc error, and one had no 
inspection (80% compliance) Those 
will be completed by 10/4/2024 
11/6 - Complete 

Sincerely, 

Michelle Thurston 
Governing Board Chair, Homes for Good Housing Agency 

 

Jacob Fox  

Executive Director and Governance Board Secretary, Homes for Good Housing 

 
 



 

Corrective Action Plan FY23 Audit 
Final Audit Report 2024-07-25 

 

 
"Corrective Action Plan FY23 Audit" History 

 Document created by Jasmine Leary Mixon (jlearymixon@homesforgood.org) 

2024-07-25 - 5:34:52 PM GMT 

 

 Document emailed to mthurston@homesforgood.org for signature 

2024-07-25 - 5:34:56 PM GMT 

 

 Email viewed by mthurston@homesforgood.org 

2024-07-25 - 9:28:51 PM GMT 

 

 Signer mthurston@homesforgood.org entered name at signing as Michelle Thurston 

2024-07-25 - 9:29:16 PM GMT 

 

 Document e-signed by Michelle Thurston (mthurston@homesforgood.org) 

Signature Date: 2024-07-25 - 9:29:18 PM GMT - Time Source: server 

 

 Document emailed to Jacob Fox (jfox@homesforgood.org) for signature 

2024-07-25 - 9:29:20 PM GMT 

 

 Email viewed by Jacob Fox (jfox@homesforgood.org) 

2024-07-25 - 10:12:14 PM GMT 

 

 Document e-signed by Jacob Fox (jfox@homesforgood.org) 

Signature Date: 2024-07-25 - 10:12:34 PM GMT - Time Source: server 

 

 Agreement completed. 

2024-07-25 - 10:12:34 PM GMT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Created: 2024-07-25 

By: 

Status: 

Transaction ID: 

Jasmine Leary Mixon (jlearymixon@homesforgood.org) 

Signed 

CBJCHBCAABAAw-Ni03JAHkHXw Jk4yA4MIg732sDL7U 

mailto:(jlearymixon@homesforgood.org
mailto:mthurston@homesforgood.org
mailto:mthurston@homesforgood.org
mailto:mthurston@homesforgood.org
mailto:(mthurston@homesforgood.org
mailto:(jfox@homesforgood.org
mailto:(jfox@homesforgood.org
mailto:(jfox@homesforgood.org
mailto:(jlearymixon@homesforgood.org

	Attachment B - Quotation Summary Palm Harbor.pdf
	VS15271K PM - Cottage Shed Roof - LAZY DAYS #2 - Elevation.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	M-1117






